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Professor Robert Butkin 

Contracts, Fall 2013 

 

 

Handout on the Mailbox Rule 

Please read R2d, §63 

 Under the common law “mailbox rule”, unless the offer has prescribed otherwise, an 

acceptance is effective upon dispatch, i.e., when put out of the possession of the offeree, 

regardless of whether it ever reaches the offeror.  The “mailbox rule” was first adopted in the 

1818 English case, Adams v. Lindsell. 

 The first question one might ask is “Why do we need a mailbox rule?”  Remember that 

offers, rejections, counteroffers, and revocations are normally effective upon receipt, consistent 

with the objective theory of contract.1 (How can a communication be manifested to another 

unless the person to whom it was intended knows about it?) 

 To understand the origins of the rule, try to place yourself in early nineteenth England.  

Before parties communicated at a distance, most bargains were negotiated face to face, and 

contracts were made either through oral agreement, or through contemporaneous signatures on a 

document.  With face to face communications, communication was always 1) instantaneous, and 

2) two-way.  Thus, when parties entered into contracts, there was little if any doubt as to the time 

of contract formation.  With face to face exchanges, there was no problem of delay in 

communication, so the problem did not arise as to what might happen if the offeree accepted an 

offer, but the offeror did not know that the offeree accepted. 

 However, when parties were communicating at a distance (exchange of mail), there arose 

a need to have some rule to determine what happens when the offeree has taken steps to accept 

an offer and the offeror doesn’t yet know. The issue typically came up in connection with the 

offeror’s attempt to revoke an offer.   Suppose that Seller mails an offer to sell her house to a 

potential Buyer, and the Buyer accepts by return mail. While the Buyer’s acceptance is in transit,  

and  before the Seller has received Buyer’s letter of acceptance, Seller mails a letter to Buyer 

revoking the offer (or, in modern times, telephones or emails the Buyer with her revocation), 

which is received by the Buyer prior to the time that Seller receives the Buyer’s acceptance.  Is 

the Seller bound by the acceptance, even though she doesn’t know that her offer has been 

accepted (because she hasn’t yet received Buyer’s letter of acceptance), or is her revocation 

                                                 
1 Revocations can be effective upon indirect communication to the offeree, but this is consistent with the 

requirement of receipt.  (“An offeree’s power of acceptance is terminated when the offeror takes definite action 

inconsistent with an intention to enter into the proposed contract and the offeree acquires reliable information to that 

effect. R2d§ 43) 
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effective (because the revocation was received by Buyer before Seller received Buyer’s 

acceptance.) 

 The common law needed to develop some kind of rule to deal with the effective time of 

acceptances by mail, and the issue became: what kind of rule makes most sense?  There were 

two possible rules that the common law could have developed. 

 Possible Rule #1 ( Acceptance effective upon mailing, not receipt)  If acceptance is 

effective upon mailing, the offeree will have accepted the contract at the time of mailing, and 

there will be a contract between the offeror and the offeree. However, if this were the rule 

(acceptance upon mailing, not receipt), the offeror would be uncertain as to whether a contract 

has been formed at the time of acceptance (because she will not have received the acceptance.)  

The offeror will not know whether she is free to deal with others.  Thus, under this rule 

(acceptance upon mailing, not receipt), the offeror could be exposed to multiple contractual 

obligations if she attempted to revoke and entered into a contract with another after the first 

offeree had mailed her acceptance.  

 Possible Rule #2 (Acceptance effective upon receipt, not mailing) If the dispatched 

acceptance were not effective until it was received by the offeror, then it would be the offeree 

who would be in an ambiguous position.  The offeree would not know if she had a contract until 

she satisfied herself that the offeror had in fact received her acceptance.  And what would happen 

if the offeree received a letter or phone call from the offeror revoking the offer?  You might think 

the revocation would be effective (after all it’s been communicated). But, if the acceptance is 

effective upon receipt, there would always the possibility that the offeror had received the 

acceptance before the offeree received the revocation.  Remember, an acceptance “closes the 

deal”, and possible rule #2 would leave the offeree uncertain as to when and whether the offer 

has been accepted, just as rule #1 left the offeror uncertain as to when and whether the offer had 

been accepted. 

 The common law has adopted the first of the possible rules: acceptance is effective upon 

mailing, unless the offer prescribes otherwise. ( Remember, the offeror is always the master 

of the offer. See, e.g. R2d §60).   Why has the common law opted for the “acceptance effective 

upon mailing rule?”  Several reasons are typically given: 

Mailbox Rule:  Acceptance Effective on Mailing by Offeree 

1. The Mailbox Rule permits acceptance at the earliest possible moment. This in turn 

permits the offeree to begin making plans based on the contract at the earliest possible 

moment.  

2. A rule where acceptance was effective upon receipt would expose the offeree to 

uncertainty. The offeree would not know when or whether her acceptance was received 
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by the offeror, so further communication would be necessary with the offeror to 

determine whether or not the offeror had received the acceptance.   

3.The mailbox rule is not unfair to offeror, because the  offeror is Master of the Offer and 

if the offeror wishes, the offeror can stipulate that the acceptance is not effective until 

offeror receives it. 

4. Mail is generally reliable form of communication, so highly likely that offeror will 

without excessive delay (hopefully) be advised of offeree’s acceptance. 

 Requirements for Application of the Mailbox Rule 

1. Must be addressed to the correct address.  The mailbox rule applies even if the letter 

gets lost in the mail and is never delivered. 

2. If addressed to the wrong address, mailbox rule does not apply. If, however, the offeror 

somehow receives the incorrectly addressed acceptance, it is effective upon receipt by the 

offeror.  

3. Acceptance is effective under mailbox rule when the letter is placed out of the 

possession or control of the offeree. Why do you think this is the case? 

4. Acceptance of an option contract is not effective until received by the offeror/ R2d §63 

(b) 

  

 


